




 
 

                                                                          MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ March 5, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 
Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Lynch delivered the invocation 

  2.  Roll Call 
       All present 
 
3.  Staff Comments: Police Chief Minton: Presentation of the 2014 Leander Police Department Annual Report 

Chief Minton spoke about the Police Department Annual Report 
Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director spoke about the Vietnam War Commemoration Event 
 

       4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
            Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
 

5. Presentation from Andrew Hoekzema with Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) 
Andrew Hoekzema with CAPCOG gave a presentation 

 

 
  6.  Approval of the minutes: February 19, 2015 
 

   7.   Second Reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 35.48 acres of land, more or less,  
         into the corporate limits of the City, including the abutting roadways and rights-of-way, at the request of the  
         property owner; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a  
         severability clause; and providing an effective date. 
 

   8.   Second Reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 261.17 acres of land, more or less, 
         into the corporate limits of the City, including the abutting roadways and rights-of-way, at the request of the 
         property owner; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a  
         severability clause; and providing an effective date. 
 
   9.   License Agreement with Capital Metro for Liberty Fest Fireworks 

 
10.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #15-Z-002: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite  
       Zoning Ordinance for the property located 1195 Sonny Drive, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
11.  Receive Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending 12/31/14 
 
12.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Northside Meadow Phase 2 
       Subdivision 
 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jason Dishongh  
    Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch                                 Place 6 – David Siebold  
    Place 3 – Vacant     City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
 
13.  Addendum #1 to the Palmera Ridge Development Agreement and Addendum #1 to the Palmera Ridge  
       Facilities Agreement between the City of Leander and Palmera Ridge Development, Inc.; Hanna/Magee  
       LP #1; and Palmera Ridge Municipal Utility District for 220 acres, more or less, generally located northwest 
       of the intersection of Hero Way and Ronald Reagan Blvd. and within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City 
       of Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
14.  Amendment to the Oak Creek PID Financing Agreement 
 
15.  Amendment to the Oak Creek TIRZ Development and Reimbursement Agreement  
 
        Mayor Fielder pulled item # 7 from the consent agenda 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve all consent items except #7.  Second by 
        Council Member Siebold.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager spoke about the changes to item # 7 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Dishongh to approve item #7.  Second by Council Member 
        Siebold. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

 
 
 

     16.  Public Hearing on Ordinance Case #15-OR-002: Consider amending sections of the the Composite  
            Zoning Ordinance, to update the architectural standards, modify Garage Setback requirements,  
            update the use matrix table and modify the landscape requirements 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
            Action on Ordinance Case #15-OR-002: Ordinance amending sections of the Composite Zoning  
            Ordinance, to update the architectural standards, modify Garage Setback requirements,  
            update the use matrix table and modify the landscape requirements 
 
            Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve with recommendation from the Planning 
            & Zoning Commission .  Second by Council Member Lynch.  

                   Amended motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve with Planning &  
                   Zoning Commission recommendation #2 to clarify that the third car garage must be  
                   located flush or behind the ground floor living area. Second by Council Member Lynch. 
                   Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
 
             
 

     17.  Consider An Ordinance of the City of Leander Amending Table V-B, Annual Projected Debt Service and  
            Administrative Expenses and Appendix B, Payment of the Special Assessments in Periodic Annual  
            Installments of the Service and Assessment Plan for the Oak Creek Public Improvement District. 
            Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
            Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
            Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
     18.  Consider an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 14-058-00 adopting the  
            annual budget of the City of Leander, Texas for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
            Robert Powers, Fiinance Director explained 
 
           Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
           Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

REGULAR AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
 
     19.  Consider Agreement for Consulting Services for Signal Modifications for US 183 and Crystal Falls Parkway 
            Intersection submitted by R-K Traffic Engineering 
            Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
            Motion made by Council Member Siebold  to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
            Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
     20.  Consider approval of the expenditure of approximately $1,724,620 by the Brushy Creek Regional Utility  
            Authority to Leander as reimbursement for the acquisition of the Gross Tract 
            Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
            Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
            Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
     21.  Consider rescheduling of the March 19, 2015 City Council meeting 
            Mayor Fielder explaiined 
 
            No change in meeting date 
 
 

            
 

  
       Mayor Fielder announced that there will be no executive session 
 
22.  Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, to deliberate  
       the acquisition and value of real property        
 
23.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion  
       regarding the acquisition and value of real property 
            
24.  Council Members Closing Statements 

               Council Members gave their closing statements 
 

25.  Adjournment  
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:51 pm 
 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
 
       _________________________________              ________________________________ 
       Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                      Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



MINUTES 
 

NOTICE OF ADDITIONAL ITEMS ON AGENDA 
      
                                                            

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

March 5, 2015 
 

 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, WILL MEET AT 7:00 P.M. IN A REGULAR MEETING ON THE 5th DAY OF 
MARCH, 2015 AT ITS REGULAR MEETING PLACE, THE PAT BRYSON MUNICIPAL 
HALL, 201 N. BRUSHY STREET, IN THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AND IN ADDITION 
TO THE ITEMS POSTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MEETING REQUIREMENTS WILL 
ALSO CONSIDER THE ADDITIONAL ITEMS LISTED BELOW: 
 
  
 REGULAR AGENDA ADDITIONAL ITEMS: 
 
1. Consider Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services with Williamson 

  County 
     Motion made by Council Member Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member  
     Siebold.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________                             ____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor              Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                     Executive Summary 

 
March 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Composite Zoning Ordinance Case 15-OR-002: Hold a public 

hearing and consider action on amending sections of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, to update the architectural 
standards, update the garage setback requirements, update the use 
matrix table, and modify the landscape ordinance requirements.   

 
Background: Staff is proposing the following amendments to the Composite 

Zoning Ordinance: 
1. Modify Single-Family Use Components regarding garages. 
2. Update the Use Matrix 
3. Update the Landscape Requirements  
4. Update the setback table and exhibits. 
5. Update the garage setback requirements. 

 
Origination: City of Leander Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of amendments to the 
ordinance with the following conditions: 
1. Permit staff the flexibility to allow minor deviations regarding 

the permitted garage width as a percentage of the ground floor 
living.   

2. Clarify that the third car garage must be located flush or behind 
the ground floor living area. 

The City Council unanimously recommended approval of the 
amendment to the ordinance with the following conditions: 
1. Clarify that the third car garage must be located flush or behind 

the ground floor living area. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Summary of Proposed Amendments 
 2.  Ordinance 
 
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 03/06/2015 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  1 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 

ARTICLE III – USE COMPONENTS 
SECTION 5:  SFC – SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT  
(d) Enclosed Garage and Parking 

(1) Dwelling units with three or more bedrooms and lots having an accessory dwelling:  A 
minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-street parking 
spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall be 
provided per lot.   

(2) Dwelling units with two or less bedrooms and not having an accessory dwelling:  A 
minimum of one garage-enclosed parking space and two additional off-street parking 
spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall be 
provided for each lot.   

(3) Parking for other uses shall be provided in accordance with Art. VI, Sec. 3. 
(4) To keep the front of the structure from being dominated by garage doors, for dwellings 

less than fifty feet wide, a maximum of a two car garage is permitted if the garage 
door(s) is (are) front facing or offset by less than forty five (45) degrees from such 
orientation. 

 
SECTION 6:  SFL – SINGLE-FAMILY LIMITED 
(d) Enclosed Garage and Parking 

(1) A minimum of one garage-enclosed parking space and two additional off-street 
parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall 
be provided per lot.   

(2) Parking for other uses shall be provided in accordance with Art. VI, Sec. 3. 
(3) To keep the front of the structure from being dominated by garage doors, for dwellings 

thirty-five (35') feet wide and less, the dwelling is limited to a single-wide garage if 
such garage door is front facing or within 45 degrees of such orientation.  The garage 
may be a tandem garage or may be a double garage with rear or side access.  For 
dwellings greater than thirty-five (35') feet wide, the dwelling is limited to a double-
wide garage if the garage door(s) is (are) front facing or within 45 degrees of such 
orientation. 

(4) In no case shall the garage be located in front of the primary structure for lots less 
than fifty (50’) feet wide. 

SECTION 7:  SFT – SINGLE-FAMILY TOWNHOUSE  
(d) Enclosed Garage and Parking 

(1) A minimum of one garage-enclosed parking space and two additional off-street 
parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall 
be provided for each lot. 

(2) Parking for other uses shall be provided in accordance with Art. VI, Sec. 3. 
(3) To keep the front of the structure from being dominated by garage doors, for dwellings 

less than thirty-five feet wide, the dwelling is limited to a single wide garage if such 
garage door is front facing.  The garage may be a tandem garage or, if provided with 
rear or side access, may be a double garage.  

 
 
  



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  2 

SECTION 17:  USE MATRIX  
Certain uses listed also need to be supported by an appropriate site component in order to 
be permitted.  P = Permitted and S = Special Use Permit Required 
 

USE MATRIX 

Use SFR SFE SFS SFU SFC SFL SFT SFU/MH TF MF LO LC GC HC HI 

Residential  
(Including 
Accessory) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Amenity Center P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Apartment 
(Including 
Accessory) 

         P P P P P P 

Artisan & 
Handcraft 
Activities 

          P P P P P 

Assisted Living 
or Nursing Home 

          P P P P P 

Bar, Nightclub or 
Private Club 

            P P P 

Bank            P P P P 
Bed and 
Breakfast 

           P P P P 

Bingo               P P 
Car Title Loan 
Shop 

             P P 

Carwash             P P P 
Colleges, 
Universities, 
Vocational 
Schools, Higher 
Learning 
Institution 

           P P P P 

Commercial 
parking 

            P P P 

Commercial 
Laundry 

             P P 

Community 
Service including 
Community 
Center, Civic 
Organization, 
and cemetery/ 
mausoleum (not 
including 
cremator or 
embalming) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Contractor & 
Building Material 

             P P 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  3 

Storage 
Cultural Facilities            P P P P 
Day Care for 6 
or fewer children 

P P P P P P P P P  P P P P P 

Day Care, all 
other 

          P P P P P 

Entertainment 
activities 

            P P P 

Florist Shop            P P P P 
Funeral Home, 
No Embalming 
or Cremation 

           P P P P 

Funeral Home, 
Including 
Embalming & 
Cremation 

            P P P 

Golf 
course/country 
club 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Grocery Store            P P P P 
Group Home 
Class 1 (6 or 
fewer persons) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Group Home 
Class 2 

          P P P P P 

Group Home 
Class 3 

          S S S S S 

Home 
Occupations 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Hooka Lounge              P P 
Hospital             P P P 
Hotel / Motel, 
Boarding Houses 

            P P P 

Liquor Store             P P P 
Major equipment 
sales and leasing 

            P P P 

Manufacture, 
Assembly or 
Processing of 
Materials of Non 
Hazardous 
Materials 

             P P 

Manufactured 
Homes 

       P        

Manufactured 
Housing Sales 

            P P P 

Mixed Use/ 
Apartment 

          P P P P P 

Office           P P P P P 
Office, Medical           P P P P P 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  4 

Office/ 
Warehouse 

            P P P 

Outdoor 
Processing of 
Materials 

             P P 

Park and related 
facilities 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Passenger 
terminal 

            P P P 

Personal 
Services (Barber 
Shop, Beauty 
Shop, Tailoring, 
Dressmaking, 
Shoe Repair, 
Small Appliance 
Repair, Bicycle 
Repair, Retail 
Bakeries, 
Catering, Dry 
Cleaning) 

           P P P P 

Pet Shop             P P P 
Pharmacy            P P P P 
Place of Worship P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Public and Civic 
UsesBuildings 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Medical Clinic            P P P P 
Pawn Shop              P P 
Payday Lending              P P 
Real Estate Sales 
Office during the 
development 
and sale of a 
residential 
subdivision 

P P P P P P P P P P      

Cemetery, 
Mausoleum,  

P P P P P P P P P  P P P P P 

Eating 
establishment 
Restaurants 

           P P P P 

Research, 
Testing & 
Development 
Laboratory 

            P P P 

Retail Sales of 
New Products 
and Service 

           P P P P 

Retail Sales, 
Second Hand 
Resale and 

             P P 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  5 

Services 
RV, Trailer, 
Commercial 
Motor Vehicle, or 
Boat Outdoor 
Storage 

             P P 

Schools: All 
curriculum 
levelsSchools, 
public or private 
including all 
levels up to high 
school 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Schools, Pre., 
Elem. & Mid. 

P P P P P P P P P  P P P P P 

Self-service 
storage/Mini-
Warehouse 

             P P 

Single-Family, 
Attached 

      P         

Single-Family, 
Detached 

P P P P P P P P P       

Single-family, 
zero lot line 

    P P          

Stand Alone 
Crematory or 
Embalming 
Establishment 

             P P 

Tattoo and/or 
Body Piercing 

             P P 

Townhouse       P         
Two-Family 
Dwelling 

        P       

Utility, Minor P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Utility, Major              P P 
Vehicle Sales 
(New), Rental, 
Repair 

            P P P 

Vehicle Sales 
(New & Used), 
Rental, Repair 

             P P 

Veterinarian 
Office 

          P P P P P 

Veterinarian 
Office, Animal 
Hospital or 
Animal Boarding 

            P P P 

Warehouse and 
Distribution 
Freight 

             P P 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  6 

Movement 
Wholesale Trade 
Activities 

             P P 

Wireless 
Communications 
- Stealth 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Wood yard              P P 
Wrecker 
Impoundment, 
Towing 

             P P 

WTF, Self-
standing 

           P P P P 

Light Ind. Man., 
Assem., Proc. 

             P P 

General Ind. 
Man., Assem., 
Proc. 

              P 

 

ARTICLE VI – SITE STANDARDS 
SECTION 6:  SETBACKS 
(a) Building / Structure and Site Improvements: 

 

BUILDING / STRUCTURE 

 Use 
Component 

Architectural 
Component Front Side Street Side Rear 

Standard 
Setback 

SFR   
25' 

7' 

15' 

15' (30' street 
facing 

garage) 

(20' street 
facing 

garage) 

SFE, SFS, 
SFU, 

SFU/MH, TF 
  

20' 

5' 

15' 

15' (25' street 
facing 

garage) 

(20' street 
facing 

garage) 

SFC, SFL   

20'  5' or 
0’ & 
10’ 

15' 

10' (25' street 
facing 

garage) 

(20' street 
facing 

garage) 

SFT   

15' 
0 or 
10' 

15' 

10' (20' street 
facing 

garage) 

(20' street 
facing 

garage) 

MF Type A 20' 10' 20' 20' 

Type B 25' 10' 25' 20' 
LO, LC, GC, 

HC, HI 
Type A, B 15' 10' 15' 10' 
Type C 20' 10' 20' 10' 

GC, HC, HI Type D 25' 15' 25' 15' 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  7 

Special Setback 
Where 

Adjacent to 
SFR, SFE, SFS, 
SFU, SFC, SFL, 
SFU/MH, TF* 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type A (NA) 20' (N/A) 20' 
Type B (NA) 25' (N/A) 25' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type C (NA) 30' (N/A) 30' 

GC, HC, HI Type D (NA) 50' (N/A) 50' 

Garage Setback 

SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, 
SFU/MH, 
SFC, SFL, 
SFT, TF 

 See Article VIII Section 5(i) 

 
 

     
PARKING, AISLE, LOADING, CANOPIES, OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

 Use 
Component 

Site 
Component Front Side Street 

Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

MF All 20' 5'*** 20' 5'*** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 1, 2 15' 5'*** 15' 5'*** 
Type 3 20' 5'*** 20' 5'*** 

Type 4, 5 25' 5'*** 25' 5'*** 
Special Setback 
Where Adjacent 

to SF or TF* 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type 1-3 (N/A) 15' (N/A) 15' 

Type 4, 5 (N/A) 20' (N/A) 20' 

       

OUTDOOR STORAGE 

 
Use 

Component 
Site 

Component 
Front Side 

Street 
Side 

Rear 

Standard Setback 
LO, LC, GC, 

HC, HI 

Type 3-4 ** 5'*** ** 0' 

Type 5 25' 0'*** 25' 0' 

Special Setback  
Where Adjacent 

to SF or TF* 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 3-5 (N/A) 25' (N/A) 25' 

*  Unless such district is utilized for a non-residential use 
**  No closer than the street facing wall of the primary structure that utilizes such storage. 
*** Setback does not apply for parking, drive aisles, storage etc. that are intended to cross lot line. 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  8 

25’ HOUSE  

FRONT

7
’ S
ID
E 
SE
TB

A
C
K
 

15’ REAR

GARAGE

HOUSE

1
5
’ H

O
U
SE
  

ST
R
EE
T 
SI
D
E 

SE
TB

A
C
K
 

PORCH

2
0
’  
G
A
R
A
G
E 

7’ PORCH 

LOT LINES 
STREET 

ST
R
EE
T

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 
5’ REAR ACCESSORY 

SFR ‐ BUILDING SETBACK

FIGURE G

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PATIO 

30’  GARAGE 
SETBACK 

   



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  9 

SFE, SFS, SFU, SFU/MH & TF ‐ BUILDING SETBACK

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

20’ HOUSE  

FRONT 

SETBACK 

25’  GARAGE 

SETBACK 

5
’ S
ID
E 
SE
TB

A
C
K
 

15’ REAR 

PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE

HOUSE 

PORCH 

1
5
’ H

O
U
SE
  

ST
R
EE
T 
SI
D
E 

7’ PORCH 

ENCROACHMENT 

2
0
’  
G
A
R
A
G
E 

SE
TB

A
C
K
 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 

STRUCTURE SETBACK

LOT LINES STREET

ST
R
EE
T 

FIGURE H
 

   



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  10 

SFC, SFL ‐ BUILDING SETBACK

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

20’ HOUSE 

FRONT 

25’  GARAGE 

SETBACK 

5
’ O

R
 0
 A
N
D
 1
0
’ S
ID
E 
SE
TB

A
C
K
 

10’ REAR 

PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE

HOUSE 

PORCH
1
5
’ H

O
U
SE
  

ST
R
EE
T 
SI
D
E 

SE
TB

A
C
K
 

7’ PORCH 

ENCROACHMENT 

2
0
’  
G
A
R
A
G
E 

SE
TB

A
C
K
 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY

STRUCTURE SETBACK

LOT LINES STREET 

ST
R
EE
T 

FIGURE I



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  11 

SFT BUILDING ‐ SETBACK

TOWNHOUSE 

GARAGE

15’ HOUSE  

FRONT 

SETBACK 

10’ REAR 

SETBACK  PATIO

7’ GARAGE & PATIO  

ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE

TOWNHOUSE 

PORCH 

1
5
’ H

O
U
SE
  

ST
R
EE
T 
SI
D
E 

SE
TB

A
C
K
 

7’ PORCH 

ENCROACHMENT 

2
0
’  
G
A
R
A
G
E 

SE
TB

A
C
K
 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 

STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES 
STREET

ST
R
EE
T 

ALLEY 

PARKING 

0
 O
R
 1
0
’ S
ID
E 
SE
TB

A
C
K
 

TOWN‐ 

HOUSE 

3’ SEPARATION

FIGURE J

   



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  12 

***** 
(f) Exceptions: 

(3) For lots less than sixty feet wide and zoned SFC or SFT, residential street facing 
garages shall be located no closer to the street than five feet in front of the dwelling 
or roof covered porch, with such dwelling or porch structure being not less than 
seven feet wide for all portions of the structure adjacent to the garage.  For all other 
lots, residential street facing garages shall be located no closer to the street than the 
dwelling. 

 
***** 
 

ARTICLE VI – SITE STANDARDS 
 
SECTION 1:  LANDSCAPING, TREE PRESERVATION AND PROTECTION, AND 
SCREENING REQUIREMENTS 
(c) Tree Preservation and Protection 

(8) A non-disturbance zone shall be maintained on single-family and two-family lots.  A 
disturbance area no more than five (5’) feet from the foundation necessary for 
construction and grade transitions shall be permitted.  This disturbance area shall 
be no more than ten (10’) feet from the foundation for properties zoned with the 
SFR (Single-Family Rural) use component.  The trees located on the remainder of 
the lot shall not be removed unless a unique situation is approved by the Planning 
Director. 

(9) Tree Protection Plan Requirements 
(i) An applicant for a single-family or two-family preliminary plat or final plat, or 

a site development permit shall provide a tree survey prepared within five 
years preceding the application date.  This tree survey shall include the 
street and lot layout, or site plan superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as 
appropriate) identifying significant trees located on the property that meet 
the requirements indicated in this section.  Applicants for a single-family or 
two-family preliminary or final plat are only required to submit a tree survey 
for the portion of the property that the applicant is proposing to disturb with 
the subdivision construction.  The applicant shall provide a tree preservation 
plan that identifies the surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected 
trees that are proposed for removal.  The applicant shall be required to 
demonstrate that lot lines, street layouts and site improvements have been 
designed and located and that lot width, depth and size flexibility as 
permitted by the applicable zoning district has been utilized to the maximum 
extent necessary to retain the maximum number of significant trees 
reasonably practicable.  Applicants for a single-family or two-family 
preliminary or final plat may plant replacement trees within lots owned by 
the Homeowners Association including but not limited to landscape lots, park 
lots, or amenity center lots. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII – ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
SECTION 5:  MASONRY AND OTHER ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
(a) Brick, stone, cast stone or other similar masonry product shall not be painted. 
(b) All window trim shall be cementious-fiber or similar product. 
(c) The number of combinations of single-family or two-family residential floor plans and 

elevations in any final plat section shall, at a minimum, equal at least twenty-five percent 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  13 

(25%) of the total lots in the final plat, but is not required to exceed fifteen.  (For example, 
five floor plans with three different elevation options for each floor plan results in fifteen 
different floor plan / elevation combinations.)   

(d) No two homes side by side or across the street within one house (directly across the street 
or “caddy corner” across the street) shall have the same elevation plan or the same floor 
plan except for the SFT district. 

(e) In the event of a natural disaster (tornado, fire, etc.) the resident may replace the 
current structure with a new structure built of the same masonry percentages as the 
pre-existing residence. 

(f) All exterior walls on remodels and additions must be consistent with the exterior of the 
existing dwelling. 

(g) Supporting columns on the front of structures shall be constructed of clay brick, ledge stone, 
field stone, native stone, stucco, cementious-fiber planking or panel, aluminum, solid cedar, 
stripped cedar posts (sealed for protection), solid redwood, or similar materials and not less 
than eight by eight inches (8” x 8”) square.  Standard trade sizes of preformed fiberglass 
columns shall be permitted. The use of dimensional lumber posts shall not be permitted. 

(h) The Director of Planning may approve premium architectural grade, decorative metal siding 
and other premium architectural materials for conformance with exterior wall building 
material standards as appropriate and applicable. 

(i) Recreational vehicles, travel trailers and manufactured/mobile homes shall not be used for 
on-site dwelling or for any nonresidential or other purpose except as authorized in an 
SFU/MH district, as provided in Article IV, Sec. 2, Special Use Permit or as otherwise 
permitted in this ordinance. 

(j) Single-family and two-family residential dwelling street-facing garage standards. To prevent 
residential streetscapes from being dominated by garage doors, and to allow the visually 
interesting features of the house to dominate the streetscape, the following standards shall 
apply: 

a. Except as provided for in this section, street-facing garages must be recessed at 
least five (5) feet behind the ground floor living area of the dwelling or a roof-
covered porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep. 

b. The total width of the garage door openings of a garage with street-facing doors 
shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear 
building frontage. 

c. Street-facing garages that have a total garage door opening width that is less 
than forty (40) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage 
width, may be in-line with the ground floor living area or roof-covered porch that 
is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep. 

d. Street-facing garages that have a total garage door opening width of less than 
forty (40) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage width 
and that incorporate enhanced architectural features are described in this section,  
may protrude up to five (5) feet in front of the ground floor living area of the 
dwelling or roof-covered porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet 
deep, but in no case shall the garage be setback from the street less than the 
minimum setback for the zoning district.   

e. Street-facing three car garages that have a total garage door opening width of 
less than fifty (50) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building 
frontage width and that incorporate enhanced architectural features as described 
in this section, may have up to two (2) bays of the garage protrude up to five (5) 
feet in front of the ground floor living area of the dwelling or roof-covered porch 
that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep, but in no case shall the 
garage be setback from the street less than the minimum setback for the zoning 
district. 



 

Legend:  Added, Removed, Moved, Moved From  14 

f. For garages that meet the standards of subsection (d) or (e) and where the site 
topography (typically slopes greater than 10% or as approved by the Planning 
Director) requires stairs from the garage into the living space, the garage may 
protrude up to eight (8) feet in front of the ground floor living area of the dwelling 
or roof-covered porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep, but 
in no case shall the garage be setback from the street less than the minimum 
building setback for the zoning district. 

g. The Planning Director may approve garage placement that does not meet the 
standards of this section in the case of unique site conditions including the 
existence of significant trees, extreme topography and similar natural features. 

h. For the purposes of this section, enhanced architectural features shall include 
architectural garage doors that are painted to match the color scheme of the 
house and include decorative hardware or doors that have a natural wood 
appearance and are combined with at least one of the following features: 

i. a garage door recess of at least two (2) feet; 
ii. a roof overhang over the garage doors with supporting architectural 

columns that extends at least two (2) feet in front of the garage doors; 
iii. any similar architectural feature, approved by the Planning Director, that 

diminishes the prominence of the garage doors on the street-facing 
building facade. 

i. Garages accessed from rear alleys are exempt from the standards of this section. 
j. Second or higher floor living areas do not count toward the measurement of 

ground floor street-facing linear building frontage. 
 

 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING 

SECTIONS OF ARTICLE 14.200, THE COMPOSITE ZONING 
ORDINANCE, TO UPDATE THE ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS, 
MODIFYING GARAGE SETBACK REQUIREMENTS; UPDATE THE 
USE MATRIX TABLE; AND MODIFY THE LANDSCAPE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, 
PROVIDING SAVINGS, EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
amendments to Article 14.200, Leander Code of Ordinances (the “Composite Zoning Ordinance”), 
and forwarded its recommendation on the amendments to the City Council;  
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has considered the proposed amendments and 
finds that the amendments are reasonable and necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 
the present and future residents of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.  
 
Section 2. Amendment to Article III, Section 5(d).  Article III, Section 5(d) of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(d) Enclosed Garage and Parking 
(1) Dwelling units with three or more bedrooms and lots having an accessory dwelling:  A 

minimum of two garage-enclosed parking spaces and two additional off-street parking 
spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall be 
provided per lot.   

(2) Dwelling units with two or less bedrooms and not having an accessory dwelling:  A 
minimum of one garage-enclosed parking space and two additional off-street parking 
spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall be 
provided for each lot.   

(3) Parking for other uses shall be provided in accordance with Art. VI, Sec. 3. 
 
Section 3. Amendment to Article III, Section 6(d).  Article III, Section 6(d) of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(d) Enclosed Garage and Parking 
(1) A minimum of one garage-enclosed parking space and two additional off-street 

parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall 
be provided per lot.   

(2) Parking for other uses shall be provided in accordance with Art. VI, Sec. 3. 
 



Section 4. Amendment to Article III, Section 7(d).  Article III, Section 7(d) of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(d) Enclosed Garage and Parking 
(1) A minimum of one garage-enclosed parking space and two additional off-street 

parking spaces (driveway may be counted toward provision of off-street parking) shall 
be provided for each lot. 

(2) Parking for other uses shall be provided in accordance with Art. VI, Sec. 3. 
 
Section 5. Amendment to Article III, Section 17.  Article III, Section 17 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

 
Section 17:  Use Matrix  
Certain uses listed also need to be supported by an appropriate site component in order to be 
permitted.  The uses set forth in this Use Matrix must also comply with any provisions governing 
that use set forth in Article III and Article V. In the event of a conflict between this Use Matrix 
and  P = Permitted and S = Special Use Permit Required 
 

USE MATRIX 
Use SFR SFE SFS SFU SFC SFL SFT SFU/MH TF MF LO LC GC HC HI 
Amenity Center P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Apartment           P      
Artisan & 
Handcraft 
Activities 

          P P P P P 

Assisted Living or 
Nursing Home             P P P 

Bar, Nightclub or 
Private Club             P P P 

Bank            P P P P 
Bed and Breakfast            P P P P 
Bingo               P P 
Car Title Loan 
Shop              P P 

Carwash             P P P 
Colleges, 
Universities, 
Vocational 
Schools, Higher 
Learning 
Institution 

           P P P P 

Commercial 
parking             P P P 

Commercial 
Laundry              P P 

Community 
Service including 
Community 
Center, Civic 
Organization, and 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

 
 -2- 



cemetery/ 
mausoleum (not 
including cremator 
or embalming) 
Contractor & 
Building Material 
Storage 

             P P 

Cultural Facilities            P P P P 
Day Care for 6 or 
fewer children P P P P P P P P P  P P P P P 

Day Care, all other           P P P P P 
Entertainment 
activities             P P P 

Florist Shop            P P P P 
Funeral Home, No 
Embalming or 
Cremation 

           P P P P 

Funeral Home, 
Including 
Embalming & 
Cremation 

            P P P 

Golf 
course/country 
club 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Grocery Store            P P P P 
Group Home Class 
1  P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Group Home Class 
2           P P P P P 

Group Home Class 
3           S S S S S 

Home Occupations P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Hooka Lounge              P P 
Hospital             P P P 
Hotel / Motel, 
Boarding Houses             P P P 

Liquor Store             P P P 
Major equipment 
sales and leasing             P P P 

Manufacture, 
Assembly or 
Processing of 
Materials of Non 
Hazardous 
Materials 

             P P 

Manufactured 
Homes        P        

Manufactured 
Housing Sales             P P P 

Mixed Use/ 
Apartment           P P P P P 

Office           P P P P P 
Office, Medical           P P P P P 

 
 -3- 



Office/ Warehouse             P P P 
Outdoor 
Processing of 
Materials 

             P P 

Park and related 
facilities P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Passenger terminal             P P P 
Personal Services 
(Barber Shop, 
Beauty Shop, 
Tailoring, 
Dressmaking, Shoe 
Repair, Small 
Appliance Repair, 
Bicycle Repair, 
Retail Bakeries, 
Catering, Dry 
Cleaning) 

           P P P P 

Pet Shop             P P P 
Pharmacy            P P P P 
Place of Worship P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Public Buildings P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Medical Clinic            P P P P 
Pawn Shop              P P 
Payday Lending              P P 
Real Estate Sales 
Office during the 
development and 
sale of a residential 
subdivision 

P P P P P P P P P P      

Restaurants            P P P P 
Research, Testing 
& Development 
Laboratory 

            P P P 

Retail Sales of 
New Products and 
Service 

           P P P P 

Retail Sales, 
Second Hand 
Resale and 
Services 

             P P 

RV, Trailer, 
Commercial Motor 
Vehicle, or Boat 
Outdoor Storage 

             P P 

Schools, public or 
private including 
all levels up to 
high school 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Self-service 
storage/Mini-
Warehouse 

             P P 

Single-Family,       P         

 
 -4- 



Attached 
Single-Family, 
Detached P P P P P P P P P       

Single-family, zero 
lot line     P P          

Stand Alone 
Crematory or 
Embalming 
Establishment 

             P P 

Tattoo and/or 
Body Piercing              P P 

Townhouse       P         
Two-Family 
Dwelling         P       

Utility, Minor P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 
Utility, Major              P P 
Vehicle Sales 
(New), Rental, 
Repair 

            P P P 

Vehicle Sales 
(New & Used), 
Rental, Repair 

             P P 

Veterinarian Office           P P P P P 
Veterinarian 
Office, Animal 
Hospital or Animal 
Boarding 

            P P P 

Warehouse and 
Distribution               P P 

Wholesale  
Activities              P P 

Wireless 
Communications - 
Stealth 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Wood yard              P P 
Wrecker 
Impoundment, 
Towing 

             P P 

WTF, Self-
standing            P P P P 

 
Section 6. Amendment to Article VI, Section 6(a).  Article VI, Section 6(a) of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
(a) Building / Structure and Site Improvements: 

BUILDING / STRUCTURE 

 Use 
Component 

Architectural 
Component Front Side Street Side Rear 

Standard 
Setback SFR   25' 7' 15' 15' 

  

 
 -5- 



SFE, SFS, 
SFU, 

SFU/MH, 
TF 

  

20' 

5' 

15' 

15'   

SFC, SFL   
20'  5' or 

0’ & 
10’ 

15' 
10'   

SFT   15' 0 or 
10' 

15' 10'   

MF Type A 20' 10' 20' 20' 
Type B 25' 10' 25' 20' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type A, B 15' 10' 15' 10' 
Type C 20' 10' 20' 10' 

GC, HC, HI Type D 25' 15' 25' 15' 
Special Setback 
Where Adjacent 

to SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, SFC, 
SFL, SFU/MH, 

TF* 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type A (NA) 20' (N/A) 20' 
Type B (NA) 25' (N/A) 25' 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type C (NA) 30' (N/A) 30' 

GC, HC, HI Type D (NA) 50' (N/A) 50' 

Garage Setback 

SFR, SFE, 
SFS, SFU, 
SFU/MH, 
SFC, SFL, 
SFT, TF 

 See Article VIII Section 5(i) 

       

PARKING, AISLE, LOADING, CANOPIES, OUTDOOR DISPLAY 

 Use 
Component 

Site 
Component Front Side Street 

Side Rear 

Standard Setback 

MF All 20' 5'*** 20' 5'*** 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 1, 2 15' 5'*** 15' 5'*** 
Type 3 20' 5'*** 20' 5'*** 

Type 4, 5 25' 5'*** 25' 5'*** 
Special Setback 

Where Adjacent to 
SF or TF* 

MF, LO, LC, 
GC, HC, HI 

Type 1-3 (N/A) 15' (N/A) 15' 

Type 4, 5 (N/A) 20' (N/A) 20' 
       

OUTDOOR STORAGE 

 
Use 

Component 
Site 

Component Front Side Street 
Side Rear 

Standard Setback LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI 

Type 3-4 ** 5'*** ** 0' 
Type 5 25' 0'*** 25' 0' 

 
 -6- 



25’ HOUSE  
FRONT 

SETBACK 

7’
 S

ID
E 

SE
TB

A
C

K
 

15’ REAR 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

15
’ H

O
U

SE
  

ST
R

EE
T 

SI
D

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

 

PORCH 

 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

LOT LINES STREET 

ST
R

EE
T 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 
5’ REAR ACCESSORY 

STRUCTURE 
 

SFR - BUILDING SETBACK 

FIGURE G 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PATIO 

 

Special Setback  
Where Adjacent to 

SF or TF* 

LO, LC, GC, 
HC, HI Type 3-5 (N/A) 25' (N/A) 25' 

*  Unless such district is utilized for a non-residential use 
**  No closer than the street facing wall of the primary structure that utilizes such storage. 
*** Setback does not apply for parking, drive aisles, storage etc. that are intended to cross lot line. 

 
Section 7. Amendment to Article VI, Section 6(a), Figures G, H, I & J.  Article VI, Section 
6(a), Figures G, H, I, & J of the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to 
read as follows: 
 
  

 
 -7- 



SFE, SFS, SFU, SFU/MH & TF - BUILDING SETBACK 

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

20’ HOUSE  
FRONT 
SETBACK 

 

5
’
 
S
I
D
E
 
S
E
T
B
A
C
K
 

15’ REAR 

PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PORCH 
1
5
’
 
H
O
U
S
E
 
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
S
I
D
E
 

S
E
T
B
A
C
K
 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES STREET 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 

FIGURE H  
  

 
 -8- 



SFC, SFL - BUILDING SETBACK 

HOUSE 

GARAGE 

20’ HOUSE  
FRONT 
SETBACK 

 

5
’
 
O
R
 
0
 
A
N
D
 
1
0
’
 
S
I
D
E
 

 

10’ REAR 

PATIO 

7’ PATIO ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

HOUSE 

PORCH 
1
5
’
 
H
O
U
S
E
 
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
S
I
D
E
 

S
E
T
B
A
C
K
 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES STREET 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 

FIGURE I 

 
 -9- 



SFT BUILDING - SETBACK 

TOWNHOUSE 

GARAGE 

15’ HOUSE  
FRONT 
SETBACK 

10’ REAR 
SETBACK PATIO 

7’ GARAGE & PATIO  
ENCROACHMENT 

GARAGE 

TOWNHOUSE 

PORCH 

1
5
’
 
H
O
U
S
E
 
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
S
I
D
E
 

S
E
T
B
A
C
K
 

7’ PORCH 
ENCROACHMENT 

 

5’ REAR ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE SETBACK 

LOT LINES 
STREET 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 

ALLEY 

PARKING 

0
 
O
R
 
1
0
’
 
S
I
D
E
 

 

TOWN- 
HOUSE 

3’ SEPARATION 

FIGURE J 

  

 
 -10- 



Section 8. Amendment to Article VI, Section 6(f).  Article VI, Section 6(f) of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is removed. 
 
Section 9. Amendment to Article VI, Section 1(c)(8) and (9).  Article VI, Section 1(c)(8) and 
(9) of the Composite Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
(c) Tree Preservation and Protection 

(8) A non-disturbance zone shall be maintained on single-family and two-family lots.  A 
disturbance area no more than five (5’) feet from the foundation necessary for 
construction and grade transitions shall be permitted.  This disturbance area shall be no 
more than ten (10’) feet from the foundation for properties zoned with the SFR (Single-
Family Rural) use component.  The trees located on the remainder of the lot shall not be 
removed unless a unique situation is approved by the Planning Director. 

(9) Tree Protection Plan Requirements 
(i) An applicant for a single-family or two-family preliminary plat or final plat, or a 

site development permit shall provide a tree survey prepared within five years 
preceding the application date.  This tree survey shall include the street and lot 
layout, or site plan superimposed at a scale of 1”=100’ (or as appropriate) 
identifying significant trees located on the property that meet the requirements 
indicated in this section.  Applicants for a single-family or two-family 
preliminary or final plat are only required to submit a tree survey for the portion 
of the property that the applicant is proposing to disturb with the subdivision 
construction.  The applicant shall provide a tree preservation plan that identifies 
the surveyed trees and the mitigation of the protected trees that are proposed for 
removal.  The applicant shall be required to demonstrate that lot lines, street 
layouts and site improvements have been designed and located and that lot 
width, depth and size flexibility as permitted by the applicable zoning district has 
been utilized to the maximum extent necessary to retain the maximum number of 
significant trees reasonably practicable.  Applicants for a single-family or two-
family preliminary or final plat may plant replacement trees within lots owned by 
the Homeowners Association including but not limited to landscape lots, park 
lots, or amenity center lots. 

 
Section 10. Amendment to Article VIII, Section 5.  Article VIII, Section 5 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
Section 5:  Masonry and Other Architectural Standards 
(a) Brick, stone, cast stone or other similar masonry product shall not be painted. 
(b) All window trim shall be cementious-fiber or similar product. 
(c) The number of combinations of single-family or two-family residential floor plans and elevations 

in any final plat section shall, at a minimum, equal at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the total 
lots in the final plat, but is not required to exceed fifteen.  (For example, five floor plans with 
three different elevation options for each floor plan results in fifteen different floor plan / 
elevation combinations.)   

 
 -11- 



(d) No two homes side by side or across the street within one house (directly across the street or 
“caddy corner” across the street) shall have the same elevation plan or the same floor plan except 
for the SFT district. 

(e) In the event of a natural disaster (tornado, fire, etc.) the resident may replace the current 
structure with a new structure built of the same masonry percentages as the pre-existing 
residence. 

(f) All exterior walls on remodels and additions must be consistent with the exterior of the 
existing dwelling. 

(g) Supporting columns on the front of structures shall be constructed of clay brick, ledge stone, field 
stone, native stone, stucco, cementious-fiber planking or panel, aluminum, solid cedar, stripped 
cedar posts (sealed for protection), solid redwood, or similar materials and not less than eight by 
eight inches (8” x 8”) square.  Standard trade sizes of preformed fiberglass columns shall be 
permitted. The use of dimensional lumber posts shall not be permitted. 

(h) The Director of Planning may approve premium architectural grade, decorative metal siding and 
other premium architectural materials for conformance with exterior wall building material 
standards as appropriate and applicable. 

(i) Recreational vehicles, travel trailers and manufactured/mobile homes shall not be used for on-site 
dwelling or for any nonresidential or other purpose except as authorized in an SFU/MH district, 
as provided in Article IV, Sec. 2, Special Use Permit or as otherwise permitted in this ordinance. 

(j) Single-family and two-family residential dwelling street-facing garage standards. To prevent 
residential streetscapes from being dominated by garage doors, and to allow the visually 
interesting features of the house to dominate the streetscape, the following standards shall apply: 

(1) Except as provided for in this subsection, street-facing garages must be recessed at 
least five (5) feet behind the ground floor living area of the dwelling or a roof-covered 
porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep. 

(2) The total width of the garage door openings of a garage with street-facing doors shall 
be no more than fifty (50) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building 
frontage. 

(3) Street-facing garages that have a total garage door opening width that is less than forty 
(40) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage width, may be 
in-line with the ground floor living area or roof-covered porch that is at least seven (7) 
feet wide by six (6) feet deep. 

(4) Street-facing garages that have a total garage door opening width of less than forty 
(40) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage width and that 
incorporate enhanced architectural features as described in this section, may protrude 
up to five (5) feet in front of the ground floor living area of the dwelling or roof-
covered porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep, but in no case 
shall the garage be setback from the street less than the minimum setback for the 
zoning district.   

(5) Street-facing three car garages that have a total garage door opening width of less than 
fifty (50) percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage width and 
that incorporate enhanced architectural features as described in this section, may have 
up to two (2) bays of the garage protrude up to five (5) feet in front of the ground floor 
living area of the dwelling or roof-covered porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by 
six (6) feet deep, but in no case shall the garage be setback from the street less than the 

 
 -12- 



minimum setback for the zoning district.  The third bay of the garage shall be located 
in-line with the ground floor living area of the dwelling or roof-covered porch that is at 
least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet deep. 

(6) For garages that meet the standards of subsection (d) or (e) and where the site 
topography (typically slopes greater than 10% or for other similar topography as 
allowed by the Planning Director) requires stairs from the garage into the living space, 
the garage may protrude up to eight (8) feet in front of the ground floor living area of 
the dwelling or roof-covered porch that is at least seven (7) feet wide by six (6) feet 
deep, but in no case shall the garage be setback from the street less than the minimum 
building setback for the zoning district. 

(7) The Planning Director may approve garage placement that does not meet the standards 
of this section in the case of unique site conditions including the existence of 
significant trees, extreme topography and similar natural features. 

(8) For the purposes of this subsection, enhanced architectural features shall include:  
a. Architectural garage doors that are painted to match the color scheme of the house 

and include decorative hardware; or  
b. Doors that have a natural wood appearance; and 
c.  Both a. and b. above must also be combined with at least one of the following 

features: 
i.   a garage door recess of at least two (2) feet; 
ii.   a roof overhang over the garage doors with supporting architectural columns 

that extends at least two (2) feet in front of the garage doors; or 
iii. any similar architectural feature, approved by the Planning Director, that 

diminishes the prominence of the garage doors on the street-facing building 
facade. 

(9) Garages accessed from rear alleys are exempt from the standards of this section. 
(10) Second or higher floor living areas do not count toward the measurement of ground 

floor street-facing linear building frontage. 
 
Section 11. Conflicting Ordinances.  Exhibit “A”, Article 14.200, Leander Code of Ordinances 
and of Ordinance No. 05-018-00 is amended as provided herein.  All ordinances or parts thereof 
conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein, are hereby 
amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 
ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance 
shall govern. 
 
Section 12. Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting zoning within the City 
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued 
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under 
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 13. Effective Date; Applicability.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from 
and after its passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code 

 
 -13- 



and the City Charter.  The amendments affecting garage setback regulations set forth in this 
Ordinance shall apply to properties for which a preliminary plat is approved after the effective date 
of this Ordinance.   Properties for which a preliminary plat was approved prior to the effective date 
of this Ordinance and such preliminary plat has not expired shall be subject to the regulations 
governing garage setbacks in effect immediately before the effective date of this ordinance; 
provided that the owner of such property may elect that the property be subject to the garage setback 
regulations set forth in this Ordinance; and provided further that an amendment to the preliminary 
plat shall cause the property to be subject to the garage setback regulations set forth in this 
Ordinance.   
 
Section 14. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any 
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall 
be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 15. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 5th day of March, 2015. 
 PASSED AND FINALLY APPROVED on the 19th day of March, 2015. 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 

 
 -14- 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
March 19, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Approval of an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Lago Vista 
 
Background: The City of Lago Vista requests approval to piggy-back on the City’s Bledsoe 
Park Swimming Pool Management Services Contract that was competitively bid in 2013 and in-
place for the remainder of the 2015 swim season. 
 
Council approval of the proposed Interlocal Agreement would allow Lago Vista to contract with 
Lifeguard4Hire and utilize the existing pay rates without having to competitively bid the services, 
since the City has already gone through that process.    
 
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully requests Council approval of the proposed Interlocal 
Agreement with the City of Lago Vista and authorization for the City Manager to execute the 
Agreement. 
 
Attachments: Interlocal Agreement  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AND CITY OF LAGO VISTA, TEXAS  

 
This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of 
Leander, Texas (“Leander”) and the City of Lago Vista, Texas (“Lago Vista”), acting by and 
through their respective authorized officers. 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHERAS, this Agreement is authorized by V.T.C.A., Government Code, Chapter 791, 
791.001 et seq. and by Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 271, Subchapter F, 271.101 
et seq.;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 271.102(a) of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes a local 
government to participate in a cooperative purchasing program with another local 
government;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 271.102(c) of the Texas Local Government Code states that a “local 
government that purchases goods or services under this subchapter satisfies any state law 
requiring the local government to seek competitive bids for the purchase of the goods or 
services”;  
 
WHEREAS, Leander previously requested proposals for swimming pool management 
services;  
 
WHEREAS, Leander previously duly selected Lifeguard4Hire as the firm to provide such 
services, and entered into a Swimming Pool Management Services Agreement commencing 
on or about February 13, 2013;  
 
WHEREAS, such Swimming Pool Management Services Agreement was renewed by 
extension through September 15, 2015 by action taken on or about February 26, 2015;  
 
WHEREAS, such Swimming Pool Management Services Agreement allows for “Interlocal 
Cooperative Purchasing/Piggyback Contracts”; and  
 
WHEREAS, Leander and Lago Vista now desire to enter into a cooperative purchasing 
program with each other to allow Lago Vista to participate in such Swimming Pool 
Management Services Agreement with LifeGuard4Hire; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein, and for good and sufficient consideration which is hereby acknowledged by the 
parties, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 
 
 



ARTICLE I - PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a cooperative purchasing program between the 
parties which will allow Lago Vista to purchase goods and/or services pursuant to Leander’s 
agreement. 

 
ARTICLE II - TERM 

 
The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year, commencing on the date the last party 
hereto executes this Agreement as shown below (“Effective Date”).  This Agreement shall 
automatically renew for successive periods of one (1) year under the terms and conditions 
state herein, unless superseded by a supplemental agreement or terminated as provided 
herein. 

 
ARTICLE III - TERMINATION 

 
1. Either party may terminate this Agreement by providing thirty (30) days prior written 

notice to the other party. 
 

2. The City Manager or his designee is authorized to act on behalf of Leander in all matters 
relating to the cooperative purchasing program established herein. 

 
3. The City Manager or his designee is authorized to act on behalf of Lago Vista in all 

matters relating to the cooperative purchasing program established herein. 
 
4. Lago Vista shall make payments directly to LifeGuard4Hire pursuant to the contract 

made under Leander’s process.  Lago Vista will enter into an agreement with 
LifeGuard4Hire and shall be responsible for LifeGuard4Hire’s compliance with 
provisions relating to the quality of services and terms of delivery of services, to the 
extent provided in the agreement. 

 
ARTICLE IV - MISCELLANEOUS 

 
1. Relationship of Parties: This Agreement is not intended to create, nor should it be 

construed as creating, a partnership, association, joint venture or trust. 
 

2. Notice: Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed 
received when sent in the United States Mail, Postage Prepaid, Certified Mail, Return 
Receipt Requested, or by hand delivery or transmission addressed to the respective party 
at the address set forth below: 

 
To Lago Vista At:    To Leander At:  
City of Lago Vista    City of Leander 
Attn:  City Manager    Attn: City Manager  
P.O. Box 4178     P.O. Box 319 
Lago Vista, Texas 78645   Leander, Texas 78646 



      
9. Amendment: This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement of 
both parties hereto. 
 
10. Severability: In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any 
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the other provisions, 
and the Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision(s) had not been contained herein.   
 
11. Governing Law: The validity of this Agreement and any of its terms and provisions 
as well as the rights and duties of the parties, shall be governed by the laws and court 
decisions of the State of Texas; and venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall lie 
Travis County, Texas. 
 
12. Entire Agreement: This Agreement represents the entire agreement among the 
parties with respect to the subject matter covered by this Agreement.  There is no other 
collateral, oral or written agreement between the parties that in any manner relates to the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
13. Recitals: Thee recitals to this Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same 
instrument. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement by their officers 
thereunto duly authorized.  
 
     

City of Lago Vista, Texas  City of Leander, Texas 
 

By:        By:       
Name: Melissa Byrne Vossmer Name: Kent Cagle 
Title:   City Manager Title: City Manager 
 
Date:        

 
Date:       

  
 
Attest: 

 
Attest: 

By:       
       Joyce Stapleton, City Secretary 

By:       
       Debbie Haile, City Secretary 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
Executive Summary 

3/19/2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Economic Development Incentive Application for Cedar Park 

Medical Emergency Care Facility  

 
Background:  The City has received an application for economic development 

incentives that meets the criteria in Section 1.09.036, but not 1.09.037 of the Code of 

Ordinances.  The code requires that the City Manager forward the application to the City 

Council.  The attached letter contains a recommendation for denial of the application. 

 

Origination:   Cedar Park Regional Medical Center Request 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends denial of the application 

 
Attachments:    Application, Code of Ordinances 1.09.001 through 1.09.038, City 

Manager letter. 

 
Prepared by:  Kent Cagle 



















AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
Executive Summary 

January 29, 2015 
 

Agenda Subject:   Consider Ordinance Regulating Taxicab Service  

 
Background:  The current Ordinance regulating taxicabs was written and approved in 

May 1985.  Many of the rules regulating taxicabs are now written into state laws.  This 

ordinance was outdated and included many regulations that do not apply now. The cities 

of Cedar Park, Round Rock, Pflugerville and Hutto do not have any rules or regulations 

regarding taxicab service.  The City of Georgetown has an ordinance but they are 

currently in the process of revamping or revoking the ordinance. Attached is a new 

ordinance and it has been reviewed by Paige. 

 

Origination:   Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary 

 
Recommendation:    N/A   

 
Attachments:    Ordinance 

                           Previous Ordinance 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary    



ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING 
ARTICLE 4.11, TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS FOR TAXICABS AND 
FEES FOR PERMITS TO OPERATE WITHIN THE CITY  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council herein establishes regulations for operating a taxicab in the City 
of Leander and fees for permitting of taxicab service; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Taxicab Regulations.  Article 4.11 of the City of Leander Code of Ordinances is 
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 4.11 TAXICABS 
 
  Sec. 4.11.001   Definitions.  
 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except when the content clearly indicates a different 
meaning. 
 
Conduct a taxicab business:  The use of one or more taxicabs within the city, by the owner 
thereof, for the purpose of carrying passengers for hire, either by driving the same himself 
or having the same driven by some other person. 
 
Taxicab:  Any and all vehicles carrying passengers for hire, except motor buses or motor 
coaches operated by bus lines over designated routes in and through the city 
 
Sec. 4.11.002   Setting and Posting of Rates 
 
Each taxicab company holding a permit issued pursuant to this Article may operate under its 
own rate schedule and such rate schedule shall be posted at all times in each operating 
taxicab.  
 
Sec. 4.11.003   Violation   
 
It shall be unlawful for any person conducting a taxicab business in the city to use or operate 
as a taxicab any vehicle not owned or leased by said company.  It shall be unlawful for any 
person to conduct a taxicab company without holding a current permit issued pursuant to 
this Article.   
 
Sec. 4.11.004 Condition of Vehicles 
 
Each vehicle operated as a taxicab within the city shall comply with all the requirements for 

 



vehicles operated on public highways by the Texas Department of Transportation. 
 
Sec. 4.11.005 Identification of Vehicles   
 
Each vehicle operating as a taxicab shall have the name of the taxicab company and car 
number on each vehicle.    Each vehicle shall be equipped with a top light. 
 
Sec. 4.11.006 Liability Insurance   
 
The taxicab company will be required to carry a liability insurance policy for at least the 
minimum amounts as established by state law for each vehicle operated by the taxicab 
company and a copy of each policy will be filed with the City Secretary before issuance of 
a permit or renewal permit. 
 
Sec. 4.11.007  Application and Permit   
 
a)  Before any person shall conduct a taxicab business in the city, an application for a 
permit to conduct such business shall be filed with the City Secretary and a permit to 
conduct such business shall be issued. Upon approval of the application the following will 
be required prior to the issuance of a permit: 
 

1) $100.00 fee to be paid annually upon renewal of permit 
2) Copy of liability insurance for each vehicle 
3) List of vehicle identification number (VIN) for each vehicle 

 
b) A copy of the permit issued to the taxicab company will be carried in each vehicle 
operating in the city.  Each permit shall be valid for one year and shall be renewed 
annually. 
 
c)  The City Secretary may deny an application for a permit or renewal of a permit due to a 
taxicab’s lack of compliance with this Article or due to the taxicab company violating this 
Article while operating under a permit issued under this Article.  The City Secretary’s 
decision may be appealed to the City Manager within ten day’s of the decision.  The City 
Manager’s decision is final.   

 
Section 2. Penalty.  Any person firm or corporation violating a provision of this 

Ordinance shall be guilty of Class C misdemeanor and upon conviction of such violation shall be 
punished by a penalty not to exceed $500.00 for each offense.  Each day the violation continues 
shall constitute a separate offense.  Proof of a culpable mental state shall not be required to 
establish a violation of this ordinance. 

 
Section 3.   Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  All ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby amended to the extent of a conflict 
herewith.  In the event of a conflict between another ordinance of the City and this Ordinance, 
this Ordinance shall control. 
 

 



 Section 4.  Severability.   It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of  
any such invalid section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase. If any provision of this Ordinance 
shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect 
other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
  Section 5.   Open Meetings.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required, and that public notice of 
the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 
 
  Section 6.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
  PASSED AND APPROVED on this 19th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:          The City of Leander, Texas 

 
 

____________________________   _______________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
     
 
 

 

















AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

 
Executive Summary 

March 19, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Extension to Consider Variance to Construction Noise Bylaw 
for RC Management Services, LLC to allow for Early Morning Concrete Pours for the 
Texan Self Storage on Old 2243 West 
 
Background:  The City’s noise ordinance limits construction generated noises to the 
hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.  Any modification to this operating time period requires 
approval from City Council.  At the February 5th Council Meeting Texan Self Storage 
had requested a variance to pour concrete between the hours of 3:00 am and 7:00 am for 
the following days: Monday, February 9th through Friday, February 13th with 
February 16th through 17th for bad weather contingency days. Additionally, they had 
requested a variance during the same hours beginning Monday, March 9th through 
Friday, March 13th with March 16th through 17th for bad weather contingency days.   
 
Due to the rains received during the above time frames Texan Self Storage was not able 
to pour concrete for any of these days. They are requesting an extension to the variance 
for completion time to extend from March 17th through March 27th, 2015, in order to 
complete the concrete pours for this project. 
 
RC Management Services, LLC has agreed to make every effort to communicate with 
properties neighboring the construction site and take all reasonable precautions to reduce 
early morning disturbances. This includes acquiring a cap to place on the trucks to lessen 
the backup indicator device.  
    
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Not Applicable 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends extension of work hours for a concrete pour for 
RC Management Services, LLC for the hours described above. 
 
Attachments:   Letter Request and Site Plan 
 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E. CFM, City Engineer 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
 

Executive Summary 

March 19, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of 
an Application to the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) for a Flood Protection 
Planning Grant for the North and South Forks of the San Gabriel River 
 
Background:   The proposed planning study would be conducted in order to adequately 
evaluate the North and South Forks of the San Gabriel River and the watersheds located 
within and outside of the City of Leander.  The funding for this project will be 
established in the FY’16 budget. 
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  City of Leander local matching funds not to exceed $40,000 
toward the regional study, GL# TBD 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of this Resolution authorizing the submittal 
of an application to the TWDB with a commitment to match local funds up to $40,000. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution and Proposed Study Area Map 

 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 









AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 

 

 

March 19, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Award of Construction Contract for 
Ridgmar Waterline Project 
 
Background:  Bids were received and opened on Thursday, March 5, 2015, for the 
Ridgmar Waterline Project.  Nine bid proposals were received, opened, and read aloud. A 
detailed tabulation of unit price bid items is attached.  Central Road and Utilities, Ltd. is 
the low bidder with a bid of $887,061.00. Central Road and Utilities, Ltd., has 
demonstrated adequate project experience for projects of comparable size, scope and 
complexity.  The consulting engineer’s recommendation of award is attached. 
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $887,061.00 from 2015 Certificates of Obligation, GL# TBD  
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends award of the construction contract for the 
Ridgmar Waterline Project to Central Road and Utilities, Ltd. in the amount of 
$887,061.00. 
 
Attachments:  Consultant’s Recommendation of Award and Bid Tabulation  

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 

















AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 

 

Executive Summary 

March 19, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 15-
012-00, Which Authorizes the Abandonment, Closure, and Conveyance of a Portion of 
Street Right-Of-Way Known as Old 2243 West, to Revise the Description of Said 
Property, and Providing for Related Matters 
 
Background:  This attached ordinance amending Ordinance No. 15-012-00 has been 
prepared by the City Attorney’s office.  Ordinance No. 15-012-00 is also attached. The 
purpose of this amending ordinance is to revise the square footage cited by Staff as 7,475 
square feet during the February 19, 2015, Council Meeting to the correct square footage of 
4,872 square feet to be vacated and conveyed.  The abutting property is the vacant land 
parent tract from which the City of Leander purchased this right-of-way on March 14, 2005, 
at a price of $4.00 per square foot.  Williamson County Appraisal District’s current 
valuation of the property is $3.22 per square foot.  An appraisal by The Aegis Group, Inc., 
dated  February 2, 2015, of a comparable vacant property located on the south side of Old 
2243 West approximately 600 feet east of the abutting parent tract property determined the 
current fair market value to be $4.50 per square foot.  As a result, the fair market value 
considered and found to be $4.50 per square foot during the February 19, 2015, Council 
Meeting requires a revised compensation for this action of $21,924.00..  
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  General Fund Revenue Account - $21,924.00 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval of the proposed ordinance amending 
Ordinance No. 15-012-00. 
 
Attachments:   Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 15-012-00, Ordinance No. 15-012-
00 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



 ORDINANCE No. ______________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 15-012-00, WHICH AUTHORIZES THE 
ABANDONMENT, CLOSURE, AND CONVEYANCE OF A PORTION OF 
STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY KNOWN AS OLD 2243 WEST, TO REVISE 
THE DESCRIPTION OF SAID PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 
 Whereas, by Ordinance No. 15-012-00, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (the 
“City”) authorized the abandonment, closure, and conveyance of a portion of street right-of-way 
known as Old 2243West;   
 
 Whereas, after approval of Ordinance No. 15-012-00, a more accurate legal description of 
said right-of-way was obtained, and the actual square footage shown in the survey conflicts with the 
estimated acreage set forth in the materials providing background information for the ordinance; 
 
 Whereas, such conflicts could create title issues for the purchaser and future owners of the 
right-of-way;  
 
 Whereas, the City wishes to amend Ordinance No. 15-012-00 to describe the right-of-way 
as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto; 
 
 Whereas, the right-of-way is surplus and not necessary for use by the City, the general 
public, or the landowners adjacent thereto as an alley or street, and Chapter 272, Tex. Local Gov’t 
Code authorizes political subdivision to sell and convey rights-of-way to abutting owners in 
proportion to abutting ownership at an appraised fair market value;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1. Findings of Fact.  The findings and recitations set out hereinabove are 
found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for 
all purposes as findings of fact.  
 
 Section 2. Right-of-Way.  Exhibit A of  Ordinance No. 15-012-00 is hereby replaced 
with Exhibit A attached hereto.  The portion of the right-of-way described in Exhibit “A” (the 
“Property”), attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby permanently closed, 
vacated, and abandoned by the City and the general public, and is authorized to be conveyed to the 
abutting property owner in proportion to said property owner’s ownership of abutting property for 
the purchase price set forth in Ordinance No. 15-012-00.  The easement described in Section 4 of 
the Ordinance No. 15-012-00 shall be retained over the Property.  The legal description set forth in 
the special warranty deed shall be revised as appropriate to describe the Property.  
 

 1 



 Section 3. Amendment of Ordinance No. 15-012-00.  Ordinance No. 15-012-00 shall 
remain in effect except as specifically amended herein.  In the event of a conflict between this 
ordinance and Ordinance No. 15-012-00, this ordinance shall control.  
 
 Section 4. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after 
its passage on the date shown below. 
 
 Section 5. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that this 
meeting was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting 
was given, all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
 
 FINALLY PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
Attest:      The City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary   Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 

 2 



EXHIBIT A 
The Property 















AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
March 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject:   Consider appointments to the Veterans Park Committee and 

the Mayor’s Committee for People with Disabilities 
 
 
Background:   An application from Donna Roland was received for the Mayor’s 

Committee for People with Disabilities.    Randy Hutchison 
currently serves on the Park & Recreation Advisory Board but 
spoke with Council Member Abruzzese and would like to also be 
on the Veterans Park Committee 

 
Origination: Board Selection Committee  
 
  
Financial  
Consideration:   n/a 
 
  
Recommendation: n/a 
 
 
Attachments: Application for Donna Roland and Randy Hutchison 
  
  
Prepared By: Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary  
 




















	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14



